
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
548 Broadway 

Monticello, New York 12701 
(845) 428-7575 - Voice 
(845) 428-7577 - Fax 
www.sullivanida.com 

TTY 711 
 

MEETING NOTICE 
 
TO:  Suzanne Loughlin, IDA Chairperson 

Edward Sykes, IDA Vice Chairman  
Carol Roig, IDA Secretary 

  Howard Siegel, IDA Treasurer & Chief Financial Officer 
Scott Smith, IDA Assistant Treasurer 

  Paul Guenther, IDA Member 
  Sean Brooks, IDA Member 
  Chairman and Members of the Sullivan County Legislature 
  Josh Potosek, Sullivan County Manager 
  John Kiefer, IDA Chief Executive Officer 
  Walter Garigliano, Esq., IDA Counsel 
FROM:  Jennifer Flad, Executive Director 
DATE:  March 10, 2022 
 
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that there will be a Regular Meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial 
Development Agency scheduled as follows: 
 

Date:   Monday, March 14, 2022 
Time:   11:00 AM 
Location: Via Zoom Videoconference Call 
 

Because of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and in accordance with Chapter 417 of 
the Laws of 2021, which took effect on September 2, 2021 and was amended effective January 
14, 2022 and further amended effective February 14, 2022 and which allows state and local 
government meetings that are normally held in person to be held remotely instead, this 
meeting will be held via Zoom videoconference call. 
 

Members of the public may attend the meeting by dialing 929-205-6099 and entering 
Meeting ID 678-518-8985 or by using the following meeting link:                                    
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/6785188985 
 

This meeting video will also be livestreamed on the IDA’s YouTube Channel. 
 

Meeting documents will be posted online here. 
 

SEE REVERSE FOR AGENDA 

http://www.sullivanida.com/
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/6785188985
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCqz9C4ODb5PjZNN80oAFctQ
http://www.sullivanida.com/2022-notices-agendas-minutes-and-resolutions/


 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

548 Broadway 
Monticello, New York 12701 

(845) 428-7575 - Voice 
(845) 428-7577 - Fax 
www.sullivanida.com 

TTY 711 
 

MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, March 14, 2022 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
II. ROLL CALL 
III. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

February 14, 2022 Meeting—Recessed to February 24, 2022 
IV. BILLS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
V. STAFF ACTIVITY REPORT 
VI. OLD BUSINESS 

Resolution: Authorizing Allocation of Additional Funding in the Amount of $500,000 to 
the Agency’s AgriBusiness Revolving Loan and Lease Fund 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolution: Amending, in Part, and Reaffirming, in Part the Agency’s Current Uniform 
Tax Exemption Policies and Creating One Additional Program, to Wit: Sullivan County 
International Airport Program 
Resolution: Authorizing an Amendment of the Adelaar Developer, LLC PILOT Agreement 
to Authorize Acceptance of a Guaranty from EPR Properties as Financial Security for the 
2023 PILOT Payment 
Discussion and Approval: Rural Microentrepreneur Assistance Program Loan to Sullivan 
Sundries, LLC  
Discussion: Board Member Self-Evaluation Forms (in Closed Session if desired) 
Discussion: Matters Relating to the Financial History of a Particular Corporation (in 
Executive Session) 
Any and All Other Business Before the Board  

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT AND ADJOURN  
## 

http://www.sullivanida.com/


 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

548 Broadway 
Monticello, New York 12701 

Tel: (845) 428-7575 
Fax: (845) 428-7577 

TTY 711 
www.sullivanida.com  

 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Monday, February 14, 2022 (Recessed) and Thursday, February 24, 2022 (Reconvened) 
 

I.     CALL TO ORDER 
Chairperson Suzanne Loughlin called to order the regular meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial 
Development Agency at approximately 11:01 AM via video conference.  
 

II.      ROLL CALL 
Members Present-                       Members Absent- 
Suzanne Loughlin     
Edward Sykes      
Howard Siegel      
Carol Roig 
Paul Guenther 
Scott Smith 
Sean Brooks 
                        
Staff Present-                               Staff Absent- 
John Kiefer, Chief Executive Officer  None 
Jennifer Flad, Executive Director   
Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
 

Others Present- 
 Walter Garigliano, Agency Counsel  
 Phil Vallone 
 Lowell Feldman, Chairman of the Board of the Sunset Lake Local Development Corporation 
 Richard Robbins, Forestburgh Planning Board Member 
 Katharine Barnhart, Forestburgh Planning Board Member 
 Mark McGuire, County Attorney  
 Ken Walter 
 

III.  APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 
On a motion made by Mr. Sykes, and seconded by Mr. Smith, the minutes of the January 10, 2022 Meeting 
recessed to January 24, 2022 were unanimously approved. 

  

IV.  BILLS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
On a motion made by Mr. Siegel, and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the schedule of payments showing 8 
payments totaling $8,631.69 was unanimously approved. Ms. Flad noted that the Agency received and 
disbursed $1,971.146.16 in PILOT. 

 

V. STAFF ACTIVITY REPORT  
Ms. Flad stated that the annual audit is underway. Site work was performed on February 10, 2022 by RBT CPAs 
and Agency staff will continue working with auditors for the next few weeks. Ms. Flad reviewed the Quarterly 
Financial Statements. There were no questions. 

 

VI.  NEW BUSINESS 

http://www.sullivanida.com/


 
On a motion made by Mr. Sykes, and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the Board reviewed and discussed a resolution 
accepting the conveyance of real property form the Sunset Lake Local Development Corporation, and 
authorizing the execution and delivery of a Lease to Agency, Leaseback to Company, PILOT Agreement and 
related documents. Attorney Garigliano stated that the resolution proposes to take a straight lease with the 
LDC that owns the Adult Care Center and enter into a fixed-payment PILOT Agreement for a period longer than 
20 years. He stated that this request requires a deviation from the UTEP policy, and that the Agency notified 
the taxing jurisdictions of the proposed deviation. The Agency received an objection from the Liberty Central 
School District on Friday, February 11 and the revised resolution takes into account receipt of the objection 
from the School District. He stated that the proposed PILOT provides certainty to the taxing jurisdictions. 
Chairperson called the motion to question, the Board voted, and the resolution was unanimously approved.  
 
On a motion made by Ms. Roig, and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the Board reviewed and discussed a resolution 
authorizing the Agency to take Official Action to reaffirm, in part and amend, in part its current Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy and create one additional program, to wit: Sullivan County International Airport Program in 
accordance with the Report of the Committee to Review the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy and the 
recommendations as hereinafter set forth; and authorizing the Agency’s staff to provide notice to all affected 
taxing jurisdictions of the proposed recommended amendments to the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption 
Policy. Chairperson Loughlin called the motion to question, the Board voted, and the resolution was 
unanimously approved.  
 
On a motion made by Mr. Sykes, and seconded by Mr. Siegel, the Board reviewed and discussed a resolution 
authorizing a Second Amendment to the Payment In Lieu of Taxation Agreement related to the Forestburgh 
Property LLC and Forestburgh Hospitality, LLC project. Ms. Flad Chairperson Loughlin called the motion to 
question, the Board voted, and the resolution was unanimously approved.  
 
On a motion made by Mr. Guenther, and seconded by Ms. Roig, the Board reviewed and discussed a resolution 
authorizing and approving the execution and delivery of any and all agreements, certificates, documents and 
instruments necessary to apply to the United States Department of Agriculture for Rural Business 
Development Grants or other available grant funds. Chairperson Loughlin called the motion to question, the 
Board voted, and the resolution was unanimously approved.  
 
On a motion made by Mr. Siegel, and seconded by Mr. Sykes, the Board reviewed and discussed a request for 
amendment of an AgriBusiness Lease to SVG 26, LLC. The Company requests that the Agency procure 
additional items of equipment to be used in conjunction with bottling equipment currently owned by the 
Agency and leased to the Company, and amend the existing lease agreement to include these items. 
Chairperson Loughlin called the motion to question, the Board voted, and the request was unanimously 
approved. Staff will proceed with equipment procurement. 
 
On a motion made by Mr. Sykes, and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the Board reviewed and discussed a request 
for amendment of a building lease and 6 AgriBusiness leases to the Sullivan Catskills Regional Food Hub, Inc. 
Chairperson Loughlin called the motion to question, the Board voted, and the request was unanimously 
approved.  
 
On a motion made by Mr. Siegel, and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the Board reviewed and discussed a proposed 
AgriBusiness lease to AMJR, LLC. The Company requests that the Agency procure various items of equipment 
to be installed in a new brewery in the Town of Tusten, and lease the equipment to the Company through the 
Agency’s Agribusiness Revolving Loan and Lease Fund. Chairperson Loughlin called the motion to question, the 
Board voted, and the request was unanimously approved. Staff will proceed with equipment procurement. 
 
On a motion made by Mr. Sykes, and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the Board reviewed and discussed the 
Agency’s Procurement Policy, Investment Policy, and Property Disposal Policy. Chairperson Loughlin called 
the motion to question, the Board voted, and the policies were unanimously approved.  
 



 
On a motion made by Mr. Sykes and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the Board reviewed and discussed the 
Agency’s Mission Statement and Performance Measurements. Chairperson called the motion to question, 
the board voted, and the Mission Statement was unanimously approved. Additionally, each Board member 
answered “Yes” to the 5 questions pertaining to the Performance Measurements.  

 
VII.  PUBLIC COMMENT AND RECESS 

Chairperson Loughlin asked those present for public comment.  The Board recognized the comments of 
Ken Walter. On a motion made by Mr. Smith, and seconded by Mr. Brooks, at approximately 12:08 PM  
the meeting was recessed to the Sullivan County Government Center on February 24, 2022 at 12:00 PM. 

 
VIII. RECONVENE 

Chairperson Loughlin reconvened the recessed regular meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial 
Development Agency at approximately 12:01 PM via video conference on February 24, 2022.  

  
 

IX.      ROLL CALL 
Members Present-                       Members Absent- 
Suzanne Loughlin    Sean Brooks 
Edward Sykes      
Howard Siegel      
Carol Roig 
Scott Smith 
Paul Guenther 
                        
Staff Present-                               Staff Absent- 
John Kiefer, Chief Executive Officer  None 
Jennifer Flad, Executive Director   
Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
 

Others Present- 
 Walter Garigliano, Agency Counsel  
 Phil Vallone 
 Ken Walter 
 Dan Grecco, Fallsburg Central School Treasurer  
  

X.  BILLS AND COMMUNICATIONS 
There was none. 

 

XI.  NEW BUSINESS 
On a motion made by Mr. Siegel, and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the Board reviewed and discussed a 
resolution amending and superseding Resolution No. 04-22 authorizing a straight lease transaction between 
the Agency and the Sunset Lake Local Development Corporation and execution of a Payment In Lieu of Tax 
Agreement and related documents with respect to the County of Sullivan Adult Care Center. Attorney 
Garigliano noted the proposed resolution includes an analysis of all considerations required by the Section 203 
of the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exempt Policy. He shared with the Board that the Liberty Central School District 
withdrew its objection after discussion. Chairperson Loughlin called the motion to question, the Board voted, 
and the resolution was unanimously approved.  
 
Ms. Flad updated the Board on 2022 PILOT payments. She stated all projects made their PILOT payments. but  
one project did not make its annual lease payment. Board, staff, and counsel agreed to discuss this matter in 
executive session. 
 
Ms. Flad reviewed the performance of the AgriBusiness Revolving Loan and Lease Fund and discussed the 
need for additional funding.  



 
 

Mr. Sykes made a motion to enter Executive Session to discuss the 
financial history of a particular corporation.   Mr. Smith seconded the 
motion, and the Board entered into Executive Session at approximately 
12:24 PM.  
 
Mr. Smith made a motion to exit Executive Session. Mr. Guenther 
seconded the motion, and the Board exited Executive Session at 
approximately 12:26 PM.  

 

XII. PUBLIC COMMENT AND ADJOURN 
Chairperson Loughlin asked those present for public comment.  The Board recognized the comments of 
Ken Walter. On a motion made by Mr. Siegel, and seconded by Mr. Guenther, the meeting was adjourned 
at approximately 12:31 PM. 
 

  

Respectfully submitted: 
Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
## 

 



No. Vendor Description Amount

1 Cardmember Services Zoom, Adobe, Disability/ Paid Family Leave Insurance Premium 1,259.83$        

2 Flad, Jennifer Q1 2022 Health Insurance Reimbursement 3,036.11$        

3 Garigliano Law Offices Retainer- March 2022  $          250.00 
4 Garigliano Law Offices Project Termination Legal Fee re: DC Fabrication (pass-through)  $       1,500.00 

5 Garigliano Law Offices Project Termination Legal Fees re: Kohl's (pass-through)  $       1,250.00 

6
Garigliano Law Offices Legal Fee re: Forestburgh Hospitality/ Forestburgh Property Second 

Amendment to PILOT (pass-through)
 $       4,000.00 

7 Hudson Valley Pattern for Progress Annual Support Contribution 2022  $       5,100.00 
8 Kristt Kelly Office Systems Corp. Office Supplies  $          320.64 
9 New Southern Tier Title Agency LLC Office Rent- April 2022 2,700.00$        

10 Time Warner Cable Telephone and Internet Service- March 2022 279.95$           
11 USDA Rural Development RMAP Loan Repayment - March 2022 2,370.41$        
12 William Fedun Printing Service Letterhead and Envelopes 573.10$           

TOTAL 22,640.04$      

_________________________________ 3/14/2022
Signature Date

No. Vendor Description Amount
none

TOTAL -$                

No. Vendor Description Amount
1 Payroll Expenses Payroll Check Dates: 2/25/22, 3/11/22 17,335.58$      
2 Paydata 2021 1099 Processing and Delivery 89.75$             

TOTAL 17,425.33$      

COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
548 Broadway, Monticello, NY 12701

845-428-7575

I certify that the payments listed above were audited by the Board of the IDA on March 14, 2022 and allowed in the amounts shown.  You are 
hereby authorized and directed to pay each of the claimants in the amount opposite its name.

REVISED SCHEDULE OF PAYMENTS: MARCH 14, 2022

Expenses Approved and Paid Since Last Regular Meeting (2/14/22)

Other Expenses and Items Paid Since Last Regular Meeting (2/14/22)—no approval required

03142022 REVISED Schedule of Payments



ACTIVITY REPORT – FEBRUARY 2022 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (IDA), SULLIVAN 

COUNTY FUNDING CORPORATION (SCFC), THE SULLIVAN COUNTY 
INFRASTRUCTURE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (TSCILDC) 

 
March 10, 2022 
 
At its regular monthly meeting on February 14th, the IDA Board adopted a resolution 
accepting the conveyance of real property from the Sunset Lake Local Development 
Corporation and authorizing the execution and delivery of a Lease to Agency, 
Leaseback to Company, Payment in Lieu of Taxation (PILOT) Agreement, and related 
documents.  This transaction relates to the County of Sullivan Adult Care Center in the 
Town of Liberty.  The Board also accepted the Report and Recommendations of the 
Committee to Review the IDA’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (UTEP), and directing 
staff to notify the affected taxing jurisdictions of the proposed changes to the UTEP.  
The IDA will accept public comments on the proposed amendments until its March 14th 
meeting.  Next, the Board approved an amendment to the PILOT Agreement with 
Forestburgh Hospitality Property LLC and Forestburgh Property LLC, relating to 
the construction of an upscale camping facility in the Town of Forestburgh that has 
been delayed for several years.  The amendment makes future PILOT payments equal 
to what real estate taxes would be absent IDA involvement until the project is 
completed, and sets a deadline for completion of February 15, 2025.  The Board also 
authorized the IDA to apply for grants from USDA-Rural Development’s Rural 
Business Development Grant program, and staff is preparing to submit two 
applications by the February 28th deadline.  Next, the Board authorized staff to procure 
certain items of equipment for the benefit of SVG 26 LLC, relating to the Alton Distillery 
on Route 17B in the Town of Bethel.  The equipment will be incorporated into the 
existing equipment lease from the IDA to SVG 26 LLC. Similarly, the Board authorized 
staff to begin procurement of equipment for the benefit of AJMR, LLC, relating to the 
startup Big Eddy Brewing Co. in Narrowsburg, in the Town of Tusten.  The equipment 
will be leased from the IDA to the AJMR, LLC under a new lease through the IDA’s 
AgriBusiness Revolving Loan and Lease Fund.  With respect to the Catskills Food Hub, 
the Board authorized the forgiveness of Sullivan Catskills Regional Food Hub, Inc.’s  
(SCRFH) 2022 building lease payment, and the deferment of SCRFH’s equipment lease 
payments through December 31, 2022.   Finally, the Board reviewed and approved its 
Procurement Policy, Investment Policy, Disposition of Real Property Guidelines, 
Mission Statement, and Performance Measurements, in accordance with the 
requirements of the New York State Authorities Budget Office. 
 
The February 14th meeting recessed and reconvened on February 24th.  On February 
24th the Board adopted a new resolution amending and superseding the February 14th 
resolution relating to the Sunset Lake Local Development Corporation.  The new 
resolution provides additional background information on the IDA’s decision making 
process. 
 



On February 28th staff made the final disbursement of PILOTs to the taxing 
jurisdictions, for a total 2022 disbursement of approximately $6,650,000.00. 
 
Staff continues work to finalize the 2021 Public Authorities Reporting Information 
System (PARIS) Reports for the IDA, SCFC, and TSCILDC, and continues to work with 
our auditors RBT CPAs, LLP as they finalize the 2021 audited financial statements for 
the three agencies. 
 

## 



 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

A regular meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”) 
was convened on March 14, 2022 at 11:00 a.m. local time via videoconference as authorized by 
Chapter 417 of the Laws of 2021, which took effect on September 2, 2021 and was amended 
effective January 14, 2022 and further amended effective February 14, 2022. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Suzanne Loughlin, and, upon the roll being 
called, the following members of the Agency were: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
   
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Sean Brooks   [     ]  [      ] 
 
 The following persons were also present: 
 Jennifer M. Flad, Executive Director 
 John W. Kiefer, Chief Executive Officer 
 Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
 Walter F. Garigliano, General Counsel 
     
        
 The following resolution was duly offered by _____________, and seconded by 
_____________, to wit: 
 
 Resolution No. __- 22 
         

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE AGENCY TO TRANSFER FUNDS 
FROM THE AGENCY’S UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE TO THE 
AGRIBUSINESS REVOLVING LOAN AND LEASE FUND 

 
 WHEREAS, the Agency was created by Chapter 560 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of 
New York, as amended, pursuant to Title I of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the 
State of New York (collectively, the "Act") as a body corporate and politic and as a public benefit 
corporation of the State of New York; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency administers an Agribusiness Revolving Loan and Lease Fund for 
the purpose of providing financial assistance to Sullivan County agricultural businesses, and  
  



 

 

WHEREAS, the demand for low-cost loan and lease financing for agricultural businesses 
has increased as the County’s agricultural industry continues to expand and diversify; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Agency’s unrestricted fund balance includes funds which can be 
redeployed to the Agency’s Agribusiness Revolving Loan and Lease Fund; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency wishes to transfer unrestricted fund balance in the amount of Five 
Hundred Thousand and 00/l00 ($500,000.00) Dollars to the Agency’s Agribusiness Revolving 
Loan and Lease Fund to more effectively reach and assist new and expanding Sullivan County 
businesses. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.  The Agency hereby approves the transfer of funds in the amount of Five 
Hundred Thousand and 00/l00 ($500,000.00) Dollars from the Agency’s 
unrestricted fund balance to the Agency’s Agribusiness Revolving Loan 
and Lease Fund. 

 
 Section 2.  The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts 
and things required and to execute and deliver all such certificates, 
instruments, documents, and to pay all such fees, charges and expenses and 
to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or in the opinion 
of the officer, employee or agent acting on behalf of the Agency desirable 
and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolutions and to cause 
compliance by the Agency with all the terms, covenants and provisions of 
the documents for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 
 Section 3.  These resolutions shall take effect immediately. 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 
which resulted as follows: 
 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain  
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain  
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Sean Brooks   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
  
 The resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 
  



 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK : 
              :SS 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN    : 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
1. I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the County of Sullivan Industrial 

Development Agency (“Agency”) with the original thereof on file in the office of the 
Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of the 
proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

 
2. Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened via video conference 

call on March 14, 2022 at 11:00 a.m. at which the following members were present: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
   
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Sean Brooks   [     ]  [      ] 
 
3. The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call 

which resulted as follows: 
 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain  
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain  
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Sean Brooks   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 
 and therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
  
70320-041v3 

 
  



 

 

 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting, 
(ii) pursuant to Sections 103(a) and (c) and 104 of the Public Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), 
said meeting was open to the general public via videoconferencing and public notice of the time 
and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Sections 103(a) and (c) and 104, 
(iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held via videoconference as authorized by Chapter 417 of 
the Laws of 2021, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout. 
           
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal on the 14th day of March, 
2022. 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Carol Roig, Secretary 
  
 
 
      
 
 



REPORT AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF 

COMMITTEE TO REVIEW 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY'S  

UNIFORM TAX EXEMPTION POLICY 
 

INTRODUCTION 
 Periodically, the County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency ( “Agency”) reviews 
its Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (“Policy”) to be certain that such policy is aligned with the 
economic development needs of the County of Sullivan (“County”). A comprehensive review was 
undertaken in 2004 by a committee appointed by Christopher A. Cunningham, then Chairman of 
the Sullivan County Legislature (“2004 Committee”).  Following that review, the Agency 
amended its Policy effective September 14, 2004.  Due to significant changes in the overall 
economy of Sullivan County between 2004 and 2006, Chairman Cunningham and the County 
Legislature were of the opinion that another review was warranted in 2006.  On October 17, 2006 
Chairman Cunningham appointed a committee ("2006 Committee") to undertake another 
comprehensive review of the Policy.  The Agency's polices were amended following that review 
effective April 8, 2008. Since that time the County has undergone significant change 
demographically and commercially.  Large-scale projects including the Resorts World Catskills 
Casino, Kartrite Resort and Indoor Waterpark, and others have been completed.  Over the past 18 
months we have navigated a worldwide pandemic, the effect of which may not be known for many 
years to come. We are now in the midst of a nationwide labor crisis and a local boom real estate 
market.  Given these developments and the passage of time, it is important to review the Policy to 
ensure that it meets the County’s current and future needs and appropriately addresses the needs 
of commercial enterprises seeking to develop and expand here.  

On September 30, 2021, Robert Doherty, Chairman of the County Legislature, appointed 
a six (6) member committee (“Committee”) to review the Policy as it now exists and assess the 
Policy’s strengths and weaknesses in providing assistance to individuals or companies that seek 
to establish or expand businesses and create employment in the County. The Committee consists 
of the following individuals: 

 
Joshua Potosek, Sullivan County Manager 
Heather Brown, Sullivan County Deputy Commissioner of Planning and Environmental 
Management 
Kirsten Harlow Foster, Foster Supply Hospitality 
Phil Vallone, Rolling V Enterprises 
Howard Siegel, Agency Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer 
Edward Sykes, Agency Vice Chairman 
 
 



HISTORY OF THE AGENCY’S UNIFORM TAX EXEMPTION POLICY 
A Certificate of Establishment of the Agency was filed with the New York Secretary of 

State on November 6, 1970.  The Agency was formed for the benefit of the County and its 
inhabitants to accomplish any or all of the purposes specified in Article 18-A of the General 
Municipal Law of the State of New York ("GML") under authority granted pursuant to Section 
906 of the GML. The founding members of the Agency adopted a single "one-size-fits- all" tax 
abatement policy applicable to all projects. That policy still exists today and is called the 
General Abatement Program (as hereinafter defined). 

 Effective January 1, 1996, the County implemented a charter form of government replacing 
its Board of Supervisors with elected legislative district representatives comprising the County 
Legislature. On February 9, 1996, the County Legislature appointed Robert Kunis, Allan C. Scott, 
Harold Gold, Joyce Salimeno, Raymond Walter, Edward T. Sykes and Ronald Gozza to serve as 
members of the Agency. The post-1996 Agency members, working closely with the County 
Legislature and the County Office of Planning and Community Development ("County Planning 
Department") undertook a review of industrial development agencies' policies and procedures in 
place elsewhere.  The County Planning Department, with the aid of the Agency and the Partnership 
for Economic Development in Sullivan County, Inc. (“Partnership”) commissioned a study, which 
ultimately resulted in a two (2) volume report entitled Rebuilding Sullivan County – An Economic 
Development Strategy (“Strategy”).  The Strategy concluded that it would be beneficial for the 
Agency to establish programs targeted to benefit certain industries believed to be well-suited to 
the County’s infrastructure and goals. 

Coincidentally, in 1997, Section 874 of the GML was amended requiring the Agency to 
review and re-adopt its Uniform Tax Exemption Policy on or before April 1, 1999 and setting 
forth the procedure therefor. Following review of the Strategy the Agency, in accordance with 
the procedures set forth in Section 874 of the GML, reaffirmed its General Abatement Program 
and adopted the following additional programs: 

Tourism Industry 
Agricultural Industry 
Manufacturing 
Retail Sales 
Thereafter, the Agency on its own initiative adopted several additional programs: 

Disaster Impacted Businesses Program (1998); the Return of Tax Exempt Property to Taxable 
Status Program (1999); Green Technology Manufacturing Program (2008); Destination Resort 
Program (2008); Tax Credit Participation Program (2008); Arts Industry Program (2016); 
Community Distributed Generation Program (2016); and Commercial/ Industrial Park Program 
(2021).   

 
COMMITTEE’S REVIEW PROCEDURE AND SUMMARY OF THE AGNECY’S UNIFORM 

TAX EXEMPTION POLICY 
At the Committee’s initial meeting held on October 19, 2021, the Committee agreed to 

extend an invitation to the Supervisor of each of the County’s fifteen (15) towns and the Mayor of 
each of the County’s six (6) villages to review, discuss and provide input on the Policy.  Each 
Supervisor and Mayor was also asked to invite up to two other local representatives. 



Invitations were extended to the following local governments to meet on the following 
dates: 
 
Date Local Governments 

November 3, 2021 Towns of Callicoon, Cochecton, Delaware, Fremont, and Tusten; 
Village of Jeffersonville 

November 10, 2021 Towns of Bethel, Forestburgh, Highland, and Lumberland 

November 17, 2021 Towns of Fallsburg, Mamakating, and Thompson; Villages of 
Bloomingburg, Monticello, Woodridge, and Wurtsboro 

December 1, 2021 Towns of Liberty, Neversink, and Rockland; Village of Liberty 

 
The Committee also invited representatives of the Partnership, Sullivan County Chamber 

of Commerce, Sullivan Catskills Visitors Association, SUNY Sullivan, Sullivan BOCES, Sullivan 
County Center for Workforce Development, and the Agency to a meeting on December 8, 2021, 
to discuss the Policy. 

Accompanying each invitation to meet with the Committee was a package of information 
prepared by Agency staff and legal counsel containing a copy of the current Policy, a listing of 
active projects approved under each program since January 1, 2011, and a copy of the 2008 Report 
and Recommendations of the Committee to Review the Policy. 

Each County Legislator was invited to participate in at least one meeting of the 
municipality or municipalities located within his or her legislative district. 

A summary of the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy in place at the time of review 
is as follows:  
 
GENERAL ABATEMENT PROGRAM 
Program Overview. 

After a Certificate of Establishment of the Agency was filed with the New York Secretary 
of State on November 6, 1970, an original tax exemption policy was adopted by the founding 
members of the Agency under authority granted pursuant to Section 906 of the General Municipal 
Law of the State of New York.  That basic policy still exists today and is called the General 
Abatement Program.  The Agency readopted its General Abatement Program as required by Law 
on December 28, 1993 and in 1997, 1998, and 1999. During the 2004 review process, the 2004 
Committee determined that the development of tourism destination projects in close proximity to 
gaming related facilities will occur with or without financial assistance from the Agency.  
Therefore the 2004 Committee recommended that the General Abatement Program be amended 
so as not to provide tax abatements to applicants proposing tourism destination facilities within 
the Town of Thompson, where several gaming related facilities were proposed for development.  
The General Abatement Program was amended on September 14, 2004 to eliminate benefits for 
applicants proposing tourism destination facilities within the Town of Thompson.   

 



Program Tax Abatements. 
The tax abatements associated with the General Abatement Program are as follows: 
Sales. Sales tax abatements are provided in connection with all taxable items purchased by 

projects under this program. 
Mortgage.  All mortgage tax on loans financing projects under this program is abated.   
Real Estate.  Real estate taxes on the increased value resulting from improvements are 

abated at fifty (50%) percent for year one (1) with the abatement decreasing two and one-half 
(2½%) percent per year for years two (2) through twenty (20). This type of abatement program, 
commonly called a 485-b "stretch", provides benefits similar to benefits that are available under 
Section 485-b of the New York Real Property Tax Law (“RPTL”), but over a twenty (20) year 
period versus the ten (10) year period provided for in the RPTL. 
Employment Goals. 
 Employment goals are determined on a project by project basis.  Real property tax 
abatements are reduced in future years if the project’s employment goals are not met.  
 
TOURISM INDUSTRY PROGRAM 
Program Overview. 
 The Agency adopted its targeted tax abatement program for the tourism industry ("Tourism 
Industry Program") on December 31, 1998. Prior to adoption of this targeted tax exemption 
program the Agency had many meetings and discussions relative to the "Sweet Spots" of the 
Sullivan County economy. For scores of years the tourism industry (together with the agricultural 
industry) was a backbone of the County's economy. Tourism facilities typically purchase most of 
their goods and services locally, while attracting customers and guests to the County from outside 
the region. Benefits of tourism industry projects include substantial employment in the tourism 
industry and the import of tourism dollars from elsewhere to the County economy. 
 The Tourism Industry Program was amended in 2004 following recommendations from 
the 2004 Committee. In 2004, the Tourism Industry Program was amended to prohibit the Agency 
from accepting applications or providing tax abatements to any Tourism Industry Program 
applicant developing a project within the Town of Thompson.  
Program Tax Abatements. 

The following tax abatements are associated with the Tourism Industry Program: 
Sales. Sales tax abatements are provided in connection with all taxable items purchased 

in connection with tourism industry projects. 
Mortgage.  All mortgage tax on loans necessary for tourism industry projects is abated.   
Real Estate.  Real estate taxes on the increased value resulting from improvements are 

abated at one hundred (100%) percent for years one (1) through five (5) with the abatement 
decreasing ten (10%) percent per year for years six (6) through fifteen (15).  
Employment Goals. 
Minimum employment goals are established for projects receiving benefits under this program. 



Employment goals are determined on a project by project basis.  Real property tax abatements 
are reduced in future years if the project’s employment goals are not met.  
 
AGRICULTURAL INDUSTRY PROGRAM 
Program Overview. 

The Agency adopted its targeted tax abatement program for the agricultural industry on 
September 14, 1998 ("Agricultural Industry Program"). Prior to adoption of this targeted tax 
exemption program the Agency had many meetings and discussions relative to the "Sweet Spots" 
of the Sullivan County economy. For scores of years the agricultural industry (together with the 
tourism industry) was a backbone of the County's economy. This industry provides the County 
with both direct and measurable benefits, as well as important indirect benefits. Benefits that are 
direct and measurable include the substantial employment in the agricultural industry and the sale 
of agricultural products outside of the County market area resulting in the import of money from 
elsewhere to the County economy. Indirect benefits include the preservation of open space and the 
County's rural landscape. 
Program Tax Abatements.  

The tax abatements associated with the Agricultural Industry Program are as follows: 
Sales. Sales tax abatements are provided in connection with all taxable items purchased in 

connection with the agricultural projects. This is of little benefit to production farms that are 
statutorily exempt from sales tax. However, this is an important benefit for services or suppliers to 
production farms and to businesses processing farm products. 

Mortgage. All mortgage tax on loans necessary for agricultural industry projects is abated. 
Real Estate. Real estate taxes on the increased value resulting from improvements are 

abated at one-hundred (100%) percent for years one (1) through five (5) with the abatement 
decreasing ten (10%) percent per year for years six (6) through fifteen (15). This is of reduced 
benefit to production farms that qualify for agricultural value assessment. However, this is an 
important benefit for suppliers to production farms and to businesses processing farm products.  
Employment Goals. 
There are no minimum employment goals associated with this program. 
 
TARGETED MANUFACTURING PROGRAM 
Program Overview. 
 The Agency adopted its targeted tax abatement program for manufacturing ("Targeted 
Manufacturing Program") on May 11, 1999. This program was developed in cooperation with the 
Partnership and the County Planning Department. By way of background, in 1997 the County 
Legislature adopted Rebuilding Sullivan County--  An Economic Development Strategy. This 
strategy recommended targeted tax incentives to be used "to attract particular businesses or 
industries ... well suited or beneficial to the economy"... of the County. Additionally, the Business 
Retention and Expansion Study which was conducted in the course of preparing the Strategy also 
recommended "targeted efforts ... to produce job growth through business expansion." The survey 



indicated twenty-nine (29%) percent of existing businesses were considering expansion. The most 
often cited reason for businesses considering relocating out of the County was "high taxes," a 
factor identified by nineteen (19%) percent of respondents. This targeted tax abatement program 
was designed to address this problem by converting such disincentives to incentives for those 
businesses with particular potential for job growth in industries identified to be well suited to the 
County's economy. This targeted tax abatement program was originally made available to the 
following types of manufacturing businesses: 
 
SIC Code Type of Manufacturing 

20 Food and Kindred Products  

24 Lumber and Wood Products, Except Furniture 

25 Furniture and Fixtures 

27 Printing, Publishing and Allied Industries 

2834 Pharmaceutical Preparations 

2836 Biological Products, Except Diagnostic Substances 

32 Stone, Clay, Glass and Concrete Products 

34 Fabricated Metal Products, Except Machinery and Transportation Equipment 

35 Industrial and Commercial Machinery and Computer Equipment 

36 Electronic and Electrical Equipment and Components, Except Computer 
Equipment 

 
The Targeted Manufacturing Program was amended in 2004 in accordance with the 2004 

Committee’s recommendation that certain of the above-listed SIC codes were likely to produce 
low-wage paying jobs, which jobs were no longer viewed as attractive given the County's then 
present unemployment levels. The 2004 Committee recommended, and the Agency did so 
ultimately amend, its Manufacturing Program so as to eliminate various SIC Codes.  Effective 
September 14, 2004, the Targeted Manufacturing Program is now available only to the following 
types of manufacturing businesses: 

 
SIC Code Type of Manufacturing 

24 Lumber and Wood Products, Except Furniture 

2834 Pharmaceutical Preparations 

2836 Biological Products, Except Diagnostic Substances 

34 Fabricated Metal Products, Except Machinery and Transportation Equipment 

36 Electronic and Other Electrical Equipment and Components, Except Computer 
Equipment 

Program Tax Abatements. 
The following tax abatements are associated with the Manufacturing Program: 



Sales. Sales tax abatements are provided in connection with all taxable items purchased in 
connection with manufacturing projects. 

Mortgage. All mortgage tax on loans necessary for manufacturing projects is abated. 
Real Estate. Real estate taxes on the increased value resulting from improvements are 

abated in accordance with the following schedule: 
 
Year % of Real Estate Taxes Abated 

1 90.00% 

2 90.00% 

3 80.00% 

4 80.00% 

5 70.00% 

6 70.00% 

7 60.00% 

8 60.00% 

9 50.00% 

10 50.00% 

11 50.00% 

12 50.00% 

13 40.00% 

14 40.00% 

15 30.00% 

16 30.00% 

17 20.00% 

18 20.00% 

19 10.00% 

20 10.00% 

 
Employment Goals. 
 Minimum employment goals are established for projects receiving benefits under this 
program. Employment goals are determined on a project-by project basis.  Real property tax 
exemptions are proportionally reduced if employment goals are not met.  
 
RETAIL SALES PROGRAM 
Program Overview. 



Industrial development agencies must follow strict guidelines when providing financial 
assistance to retail projects ("Retail Sales Program"). These guidelines are set forth in Section 862 
of the GML. The general rule is that industrial development agencies cannot provide financial 
assistance to any project that is primarily engaged in retail sales to customers who personally visit 
the project's facility to obtain such goods or services, if such sales constitute more than one-third 
(1/3) of the total project costs, unless: 
  (i) the predominant purpose of the project would be to make available goods or services 
which would not, but for the project, be reasonably accessible to the residents of the city, town, or 
village within which the proposed project would be located because of a lack of reasonably 
accessible retail trade facilities offering such goods or services;  or  

(ii) the project is located in a highly distressed area. 
If the proposed project meets either exception above, then an industrial development 

agency may approve the application for financial assistance only if: 
(i) the Agency finds that undertaking the project will preserve or increase the overall 

number of permanent, private sector jobs in New York State, and  
(ii) the proposed action of the Agency with respect to the project is confirmed by the 

County Manager. 
The Agency's Retail Sales Program was amended in 2004 following the recommendation 

of the 2004 Committee. In keeping with the 2004 Committee's belief that the development of 
tourism destination projects in close proximity to gaming related facilities will occur with or 
without financial assistance from the Agency, the Agency amended its Retail Sales Program 
effective September 14, 2004 so as to not provide tax abatement benefits under the Agency's Retail 
Sales Program to applicants proposing tourism destination facilities within the Town of Thompson.  
No changes were made to the Retail Sales Program following the 2008 review. 
Program Tax Abatements. 

Sales. Sales tax abatements are provided in connection withal taxable items purchased by 
retail projects. 

Mortgage. All mortgage tax on loans necessary for financing retail projects is abated. 
 Real Estate. Real estate taxes on the increased value resulting from improvements are 
abated at fifty (50%) percent for year one (1) with the abatement decreasing by five (5%) percent 
per year for years two (2) through ten (10).  This abatement mirrors Section 485-b of the New 
York Real Property Tax Law.  For years eleven (11) through fifteen (15), payments in lieu of taxes 
(“PILOT payments”) are equal to “full taxes”; although the value of the project for PILOT 
purposes remains fixed.  
Employment Goals. 
 There are no minimum employment goals associated with this program. 
 
DISASTER IMPACTED BUSINESSES PROGRAM 
Program Overview.  
 The targeted tax abatement program for Disaster Impacted Businesses ("Disaster Impacted 



Business Program") was adopted by the Agency in July, 1998. The purpose of this  program is to 
provide incentives for businesses, which have been substantially destroyed by fire, flood, or other 
natural disasters, to rebuild in the County. Moving a business from one location to another involves 
a myriad of challenges. Notwithstanding the challenges, businesses routinely relocate. When the 
assets of a business are reduced to the form of an insurance company check the challenges 
associated with moving a business from one location to another cease to exist. Whether a business 
chooses to reestablish in its former location or move to a new location (either within or outside the 
County) can be greatly influenced by a targeted program designed to assist a disaster impacted 
business in its time of need. 
Program Tax Abatements. 

The following tax abatements are associated with the Disaster Impacted Businesses 
Program: 

Sales. Sales tax abatements are provided in connection with all taxable items purchased in 
connection with the rebuilding of the disaster impacted business. 

Mortgage. All mortgage tax on loans necessary to rebuild the disaster impacted business 
is abated. 

Real Estate. Real estate taxes on the increased value resulting from improvements are 
abated at one-hundred (100%) percent for year one (1) with the abatement decreasing ten (10%) 
percent per year through year (5) five and then at five (5%) percent per year years six (6) through 
fifteen (15). 
Employment Goals. 

Since the Disaster Impacted Businesses Program is a business retention tool, there are no 
minimum employment goals associated with this program. 
 
ENCOURAGING THE RETURN OF TAXABLE PROPERTY TO TAXABLE STATUS 
PROGRAM 
Program Overview. 

The Agency adopted its targeted tax abatement program encouraging the return of tax 
exempt property to taxable status (“Encouraging the Return of Taxable Property to Taxable Status 
Program”) on June 8, 1999.  In adopting this targeted tax exemption program, the Agency 
recognized that historically many properties within the County receive real property tax 
exemptions as a result of ownership and use by not-for-profit organizations. Many of these 
properties, if returned to the tax rolls, would require substantial improvements.  As adopted in 
1999, this was a twenty-year program, under which real estate taxes on the increased value 
resulting from improvements were abated at fifty (50%) percent for year one (1) with the 
abatement decreasing at two and one-half (2-½%) percent per year for years two (2) through twenty 
(20).  The 2008 Review committee, recognizing the substantial number of tax exempt properties 
in the County, recommended that the Agency enhance the abatement schedule to provide a more 
meaningful incentive for property owners considering undertaking projects.  The Agency accepted 
this recommendation and amended the Program to provide the abatement schedule below.  Further, 
the 2008 Committee recommended that the Agency require that a project seeking benefits under 
this program be limited to properties that have been tax exempt for a minimum of three (3) years, 



and that the assessed value established by the assessing jurisdiction be utilized in computing 
PILOT payments for the term of the program.  The Agency accepted all recommendations of the 
2008 Committee with respect to the Encouraging the Return of Taxable Property to Taxable Status 
Program and amended the program to reflect these changes on April 8, 2008. 
Program Tax Abatements. 

The following tax abatements are associated with this program: 
Sales. Sales tax abatements are provided in connection with all taxable items purchased by 

a project in connection with this program. 
Mortgage. All mortgage tax on loans necessary for projects constructed under this program 

is abated. 
Real Estate. Real estate taxes on the increased value resulting from improvements are 

abated according to the following schedule: 
 

Year % of Real Estate Taxes Abated 

1 100.00% 

2 100.00% 

3 100.00% 

4 91.67% 

5 83.33% 

6 75.00% 

7 67.67% 

8 58.33% 

9 50.00% 

10 41.67% 

11 33.33% 

12 25.00% 

13 16.67% 

14 8.33% 

15 0.00% 

 
Employment Goals. 

As this program focuses on taxable status, there are no minimum employment goals 
associated with the program. 
 
GREEN TECHNOLOGY MANUFACTURING PROGRAM 
Program Overview. 



 The Green Technology Manufacturing Program was adopted by the Agency on April 8, 
2008 at the recommendation of the 2006 Committee. This program is targeted to businesses 
locating in the Green Technology Park located at SUNY Sullivan. 
Program Tax Abatements. 
 Sales.  Sales tax abatement on all taxable purchases made in connection with the 
acquisition, construction, installation, and equipping of the project. 
 Mortgage.  There is a mortgage tax abatement on all loans financing projects under this 
program. 
 Real Estate. Real estate taxes on the increased value resulting from improvements are 
abated over a twelve-year period, at one-hundred (100%) percent for first three (3) years, seventy-
five (75%) percent the next three (3) years, fifty (50%) percent the following three (3) years, and 
twenty-five (25%) percent the last three (3) years. 
Location Restriction. 
 To be eligible for benefits under this program, a project must be located in the Green 
Technology Park at SUNY Sullivan. 
Employment Goals. 

Minimum employment goals are established for projects receiving benefits under the Green 
Technology Manufacturing Program.  Employment goals are determined on a project-by-project 
basis.  Real property tax abatements are proportionally reduced if the project’s employment goals 
are not met. 
 
DESTINATION RESORT PROGRAM 
Program Overview. 

The Agency adopted its Destination Resort Program on April 8, 2008, at the recommendation 
of the 2008 Review Committee.  This program is designed to offer meaningful incentives for large-
scale tourism projects, which have numerous direct and indirect benefits for Sullivan County.  
These projects generally invest significant funds in their projects, attract tourism dollars that are 
spent in the County, and create many jobs. To qualify for the Destination Resort Program, a project 
must meet each of the following criteria: 

(i) $25,000,000 in total project costs; 
(ii) total project investment of not less than $250,000 per room; and 
(iii) a minimum job creation of one (1) full-time equivalent employee  (“FTE”) for every 

four (4) rooms. 
Program Tax Abatements. 

Sales. Sales tax abatement on all taxable purchases made in connection with the 
acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of the project. 

Mortgage. Mortgage tax abatement on all loans financing projects under this program. 
Real Estate. Real estate taxes on the increased value resulting from improvements are 

abated over sixteen (16) years as follows: 



 
Year % of Real Estate Taxes Abated 

1 100.00% 

2 100.00% 

3 100.00% 

4 100.00% 

5 100.00% 

6 100.00% 

7 100.00% 

8 100.00% 

9 87.50% 

10 75.00% 

11 62.50% 

12 50.00% 

13 37.50% 

14 25.00% 

15 12.50% 

16 0.00% 

 
Employment Goals. 

At least one (1) FTE for every four (4) rooms must be created and maintained during the 
term of the project.  Real property tax abatements are proportionally reduced if the project’s 
employment goals are not met. 
 
TAX CREDIT PARTICIPATION PROGRAM 
Program Overview. 

The Tax Credit Participation Program was adopted by the Agency on April 13, 2010.  
Lenders underwriting requirements typically require participation in federal tax credit programs to 
form single purpose entities as conduit borrowers.  Normally these single purpose entities are not 
exempt from taxation, even in cases where the entity is an affiliate or subsidiary of an entity entitled 
to exemption under RPTL § 420 and qualified and operating under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code.  The purpose of the Tax Credit Participation Program is to facilitate participation 
in the Federal New Markets Tax Credit Program, the Federal Historic Tax Credits Program or 
similar federal and state programs involving the use of federal tax credits. 

This program does not apply to residential projects.  All program participants must be an 
affiliate or subsidiary of an entity (i) exempt from real property taxes under RPTL § 420 and (ii) 
qualified and operating under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.  An entity meeting 



the requirements of (i) and (ii) above shall be a qualifying subsidiary or affiliate if the applicable 
exempt entity is (x) the owner of or majority of the beneficial interest in such subsidiary or affiliate 
or (y) is the managing member of such subsidiary or affiliate. 
Program Tax Abatements. 

Sales:  All sales tax on the lease or purchase of tangible personal property acquired under 
this program is abated. 
Mortgage:  All mortgage tax on loans financing projects under this program is abated. 
Real Estate:  All real estate tax for the period of the financing program but not exceeding 

thirty (30) years are abated. 
Employment Goals. 
There are no employment goals associated with this Program. 
 
ARTS INDUSTRY PROGRAM. 
Program Overview. 

The Agency adopted the Arts Industry Program on June 13, 2016. This program benefits 
for-profit businesses in the arts industry.  The program was designed to capitalize on then-current 
efforts introduced to establish Arts and Cultural Districts throughout New York; to further 
encourage the development of the County’s arts industry by providing a significant comparative 
advantage to companies seeking to locate specifically in proposed Arts and Cultural Districts in 
Sullivan County with incentives from local municipalities, the County, and the State;  to build on 
New York State’s efforts to incentivize qualified film production companies that produce feature 
films, television series, relocated television series, television pilots, films for television, and/or 
incur post-production costs associated with the original creation of these productions through the 
Film Tax Credit Program for upstate counties; to further develop Sullivan County’s tourism 
industry, which has long been a pillar of our economy, by providing incentives to arts and cultural 
businesses; to complement recently completed major development projects in Sullivan County; 
and  to foster an industry that provides clean jobs that can strengthen the economy in our region 
while preserving the rural assets to which people are drawn.  
Program Tax Abatements: 

Sales:  Sales tax abatement on all taxable purchases made in connection with the 
acquisition, construction, installation, and equipping of the project. 

Mortgage: Mortgage tax abatement on all loans financing projects under this program. 
Real Estate: Real estate taxes on the increased value resulting from improvements are 

abated over a fifteen year period as follows: one hundred percent (100%) for years one (1) through 
five (5); ninety percent (90%) for year six (6); eighty percent (80%) for year seven (7); seventy 
percent (70%) for year eight (8); sixty percent (60%) for year nine (9); fifty percent (50%) for year 
ten (10); forty percent (40%) for year eleven (11); thirty percent (30%) for year twelve (12); twenty 
percent (20%) for year thirteen (13); ten percent (10%) for year fourteen (14); and zero percent 
(0%) for year fifteen (15).  
Employment Goals. 



Employment goals are determined on a project-by-project basis.  Real property tax 
abatements are proportionally reduced if the project’s employment goals are not met. 
 
COMMUNITY DISTRIBUTED GENERATION PROGRAM 
Program Overview. 

The Community Distributed Generation Program was adopted by the Agency on 
December 12, 2016.  In light of changes to the financial and regulatory framework affecting 
solar development, the program was amended and re-adopted on September 14, 2020.  The 
purposes of this program are (i) to support New York State’s “Reforming the Energy Vision” 
Initiative, which is intended to encourage renewable energy development that will spur 
economic growth and develop new energy business models; (ii) to bring community 
distributed generation projects to Sullivan County, where existing low electricity rates would 
otherwise inhibit investment in solar installations; (iii) to administer a single County-wide 
uniform tax exempt policy, allowing municipalities to collect long- term predictable PILOT 
monies without the burden of developing and administering PILOT agreements at the local 
government or school district level; (iv) to respect variations in local policy by requiring that 
each project application includes a letter affirming that the host municipality supports the 
project; (v) to foster the development of residential and small business on-site solar energy 
systems, which are not eligible for Agency benefits, by requiring that 1) towns recommending 
projects to the Agency also participate in New York State’s Real Property Tax Law (RPTL) 
Section 487 program; and 2) school districts within which projects are proposed also 
participate in the RPTL Section 487 program; (vi) to assist project developers by offering a 
single County-wide uniform tax exempt policy, eliminating the need to negotiate PILOTs with 
the County and the various towns, villages, and school districts; (vii) to enhance developers’ 
prospects for financing community distributed generation projects by offering a uniform 
PILOT structure that is simple and therefore more appealing to lenders; (viii) to benefit 
Sullivan County residents and businesses by requiring community distributed generation 
projects to offer them a local buying preference and an electricity rate of 10 percent less than 
the utility company’s default rate, averaged over a 36 month period; (ix) to stimulate Sullivan 
County’s transition to a sustainable energy economy by fostering the generation of local solar 
energy that is purchased and used within the County; and (x) to bring short- and long-term 
jobs to Sullivan County.  
Program Tax Abatements. 

Sales: Sales tax abatement on all taxable purchases made in connection with the 
acquisition, construction, installation, and equipping of the project. 

Mortgage: Mortgage tax abatement on all loans financing projects under this program. 
Real Estate: Real estate taxes on the increased value resulting from improvements are 

abated over a twenty-year period. The annual PILOT payment is expressed as a dollar value 
per megawatt (MW) of the facility’s nameplate capacity.  The dollar value per megawatt 
depends upon the level of incentives the project receives from New York State through the 
Public Service Commission’s Value of Distributed Energy Resources (VDER), or Value 
Stack, mechanism.  The PILOT dollar value per MW is the same for all Agency projects 
receiving a particular level of incentives through VDER.  The PILOT is divided among all 



affected taxing jurisdictions in proportion to their tax rates. 
Employment Goals. 

There are no employment goals associated with this Program. 
 
COMMERCIAL/ INDUSTRIAL PARK PROGRAM 
Program Overview. 

The Commercial/ Industrial Park Program was adopted by the Agency on April 21, 2021.  
This program is designed to encourage owners of land zoned for commercial or industrial uses to 
invest in roads and infrastructure without a concern about additional real estate taxes becoming a 
burdensome carrying cost while the commercial or industrial park land or lots are being marketed 
to end users. 

This program is limited to projects undertaken on land with zoning that allows commercial 
or industrial uses and shall be applicable to only the Towns of Liberty, Thompson and 
Mamakating, along Interstate Route 86 and the Towns of Fallsburg and Bethel, where commercial 
or industrial parks are located. 

It is anticipated that persons or entities purchasing or leasing land (or the owner 
constructing improvements) will apply for tax abatements on projects to be constructed on the 
improved commercial or industrial park land.  At the time of adoption of this program, such future 
abatements shall receive financial assistance under the Agency’s General Abatement Program 
unless 1) the proposed use qualifies for abatements under the Agency’s Manufacturing or other 
applicable Abatement Program or 2) the proposed project seeks and is granted a deviation from 
the Agency’s General Abatement Program. 
Program Tax Abatements. 

Sales: Sales tax abatements are provided in connection with all taxable items purchased or 
leased in connection with the development of the qualifying commercial or industrial park.  The 
Agency’s sales tax reporting protocols shall apply to all such expenditures.  The abatement is 
subject to the Agency’s one (1%) percent sales tax abatement fee. 

Mortgage: All mortgage recording taxes (“MRT”) on real estate mortgages securing loans 
for development of qualifying industrial parks shall be abated.  The abatement is subject to the 
Agency’s MRT abatement fee of the greater of one-tenth (1/10%) percent of the original principal 
amount of the debt secured or Five Thousand and 00/l00 ($5,000.00) Dollars. 

Real Estate: Real estate taxes on the increased value of the land following installation of 
roads and infrastructure shall be abated at one hundred (100%) percent for a period not to exceed 
ten (10) years. All projects relying on this program shall enter into a Master Development and 
Agency Agreement (“MDAA”).  The MDAA shall provide that when a part of the commercial or 
industrial park is sold, leased or a building permit related thereto is issued, the land or lot subject 
to the sale, lease or permit shall no longer qualify for real estate tax abatement under this program. 
Employment Goals. 

There are no employment goals associated with this Program. 
 



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS RELATING TO THE AGENCY’S UNIFORM TAX 
EXEMPTION POLICY 

 The Committee reviewed the eligibility criteria, tax abatement schedules, employment 
goals, and other information relating to each program within the Agency’s Uniform Tax 
Exemption Policy.  The Committee also reviewed each of the foregoing with representatives of 
the towns, villages, and economic development agencies who accepted the invitation of the 
committee to provide feedback on the Policy. 
 At its meeting on January 5, 2022, the Committee finalized its proposed recommendations 
to the Agency relating to the Agency’s Uniform Tax Exemption Policy and commissioned this 
report.  Thereafter, this report was revised and finalized for submittal to the Agency for 
consideration. 

SUGGESTED AMENDMENT OF THE GENERAL ABATEMENT PROGRAM 
During the review process, representatives of local governments expressed concern that 

the Agency’s abatement programs are too generous.  Recognizing the concerns of local 
governments that are burdened by many types of real property tax exemptions and recognizing 
that the County’s economy has changed and improved substantially since the General Abatement 
Program was adopted, the Committee recommends that the Agency amend the General Abatement 
Program so that the total value subject to payment in lieu of taxes (“TVSP”) is fixed by the Agency 
for only the first ten (10) years of the program.  The Committee recommends that, after the ten 
(10) year “freeze period”, the assessed value established by the assessing jurisdiction be utilized 
in computing payments in lieu of taxes (“PILOT Payments”) for the remaining ten (10) years of 
the program.  

Further, the Committee recognizes the dramatic changes in the local, regional, national and 
global economic development landscape since the last review.  With the advent of electronic 
commerce over the past many years, and an increasing reliance on electronic commerce since the 
onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, thousands of distribution centers have been constructed to keep 
up with consumer demand for fast, reliable deliveries.  The Committee believes distribution centers 
create jobs and increase the local tax base.  However, as of November 2021 Sullivan County’s 
unemployment rate was 3.9%, compared with 5.5% statewide, and employers around the County 
are struggling to fill open positions.  The Committee urges the Agency to exercise caution when 
incentivizing projects like distribution centers, which creates jobs but for which there seem to be 
few potential employees, with few or no housing options.   To offset the possible negative side-
effects of incentivizing distribution centers, the Committee recommends that the Agency require 
distribution center projects to provide, through construction or renovation, market rate workforce 
housing at a minimum rate of one (1) housing unit per twelve thousand five hundred (12,500) 
square feet of distribution center space and a maximum rate of one (1) housing unit per five 
thousand (5,000) square feet of distribution space, in order to be eligible for benefits under the 
General Abatement Program.  Market rate workforce housing units must be renovated or 
constructed within Sullivan County, and within twenty-five (25) miles of the distribution center 
project.  Further, the Committee believes the Agency’s tax incentives will do little to attract 
distribution centers, whose greatest expenses are transportation costs.    

 
 



SUGGESTED AMENDMENT OF THE TOURISM INDUSTRY PROGRAM 
The Committee recommends that the Tourism Industry Program offer two levels of real 

property tax abatements. The first would be identical to the current abatement schedule: real estate 
taxes would be abated on the increased value resulting from improvements at one-hundred (100%) 
percent for years one (1) through five (5) with the abatement decreasing ten (10%) percent per 
year for years six (6) through fifteen (15).  The second would be as follows: real estate taxes would 
be abated on the increased value resulting from improvements at one-hundred (100%) percent for 
years one (1) through eight (8), with the abatement decreasing twelve and a half (12.5%) percent 
per year for years nine (9) through sixteen (16). To be eligible for the enhanced sixteen (16) year 
abatement schedule, a project would need to meet two criteria: 1) the project must create one full-
time equivalent employment position for every two (2) rooms constructed as part of the Tourism 
Industry project, and 2) the project must provide, through construction or renovation, market rate 
workforce housing at a minimum rate of one (1) unit for every four (4) rooms and a maximum rate 
of one (1) unit for every one (1) room renovated or constructed as part of the Tourism Industry 
project.   Market rate workforce housing units must be renovated or constructed within Sullivan 
County, and within twenty-five (25) miles of the Tourism Industry project. 

 
SUGGESTED AMENDMENT OF THE TARGETED MANUFACTURING PROGRAM 
The Committee recommends that the Agency leave this program intact, and ensure that 

green technology manufacturing businesses are included in the list of SIC codes that are eligible 
for Agency benefits. 

 
SUGGESTED AMENDMENT OF THE RETAIL SALES PROGRAM 

 The requirements of Section 862 of the GML have been amended since the 2008 review. 
The Committee recommends the Agency amend the language of the Retail Sales Program to 
exactly mirror the current requirements of the General Municipal Law, as set forth in the Policy 
Overview above. 
  

SUGGESTED INTEGRATION OF THE GREEN TECHNOLOGY MANUFACTURING 
PROGRAM INTO THE TARGETED MANUFACTURING PROGRAM 

 The Committee recognizes that, more than ever, the County of Sullivan and the Agency 
are committed to sustainable energy and a sustainable economy.  We also recognize that green 
technology manufacturing is a global market and several international firms wield control of this 
market.  We recommend that, rather than limiting incentives for green technology manufacturing 
to the SUNY Sullivan Campus, the Agency eliminate the Green Technology Manufacturing 
Program as a standalone program and instead integrate green technology manufacturing into the 
Agency’s Targeted Manufacturing Program.  This would ensure that manufacturers of green 
technology could locate anywhere in the County and realize the benefits of Agency involvement.  
We believe SIC Major Group 36, “Electronic and Other Electric Equipment,” encompasses green 
technology manufacturing.  This SIC Major Group is included in the listing of SIC codes eligible 
for benefits under the Targeted Manufacturing Program.  

SUGGESTED INTEGRATION OF THE DESTINATION RESORT PROGRAM INTO THE 



TOURISM INDUSTRY PROGRAM 
The Committee recognizes the tremendous positive impact of large-scale tourism projects 

on Sullivan County’s economy. We also understand the strain on new and existing employers, who 
struggle to attract employees to Sullivan County without an adequate supply of housing.  To 
simplify the Agency’s programs and to encourage large-scale tourism businesses to consider 
market rate workforce housing as an integral component of their business plans, we recommend 
that the Destination Resort Program be eliminated as a standalone program and instead be 
integrated into the Tourism Industry Program, with an enhanced level of benefits for the kinds of 
large-scale projects that are currently part of the Destination Resort Program, as outlined above in 
our suggested amendments to the Tourism Industry Program. 

 
SUGGESTED ELIMINATION OF THE TAX CREDIT PARTICIPATION PROGRAM 

Since this program was created in 2010, one project has received benefits under the 
program.  Given the narrow focus and low utilization of this program, and the changing landscape 
of federal and state tax credit programs, the Committee recommends that the Agency eliminate the 
Tax Credit Participation Program at this time. The Agency may wish to consider investigating and 
creating a new program that aligns with current and future tax credit programs offered at the federal 
and state levels.   

 
SUGGESTED AMENDMENT OF THE COMMUNITY DISTRIBUTED GENERATION 

PROGRAM 
During our meetings with local elected officials, it became apparent that there is great 

variation among municipalities with respect to solar energy development as a land use planning 
issue.  Many Sullivan County towns are amenable to solar facilities locating within their 
boundaries, but some towns do not wish to encourage the development of solar facilities. To 
respect variations in local policy, the Agency’s Community Distributed Generation Program 
requires that each project application include a letter affirming that the host municipality supports 
the project.  We recommend this requirement be preserved.   

The Program now in effect only authorizes the Agency to provide financial assistance to 
projects located in an area where no taxing jurisdiction has opted out of RPTL §487.  The 
Committee does not believe there is a good reason to prevent Agency involvement in a project 
where a taxing jurisdiction has opted out under RPTL §487.  The Committee recommends this 
limitation be eliminated and recommends that the exemption provided by the Agency be for the 
entire twenty (20) year abatement period.  

 
SUGGESTED CREATION OF THE SULLIVAN COUNTY INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

PROGRAM 
The Sullivan County International Airport presents an important opportunity for economic 

growth.  While the County may be willing to lease airport land to developers at favorable rates, 
the Committee believes the high cost of property taxes deters potential developers from 
constructing hangars and other aviation-related facilities.  In particular, we understand that in many 
neighboring states, real estate taxes are not assessed on airport properties.  To overcome this 



competitive disadvantage and capitalize on the opportunity presented at the Airport, the Committee 
recommends that the Agency create a new Sullivan County International Airport Program.  Such 
a program would only be available to developers proposing the construction of aircraft hangars or 
other aviation-related facilities. 
 The following program benefits are suggested: 
Program Tax Abatements. 
 Sales. Sales tax abatement on all taxable purchases made in connection with acquisition, 
construction, installation and equipping of the project. 
 Mortgage.  Mortgage tax abatement on all loans financing projects under this program. 
 Real Estate. A thirty (30) year abatement schedule is proposed whereby seventy-five (75%) 
percent of the assessed value established by the assessing jurisdiction is abated each year, from 
years one (1) through thirty (30). 
Location Restriction. 
 Only projects located on the approximately six hundred (600) acres owned by the County 
of Sullivan and located at the Sullivan County International Airport would be eligible for benefits 
under this program. 
Employment Goals. 
 No employment goals are proposed. 

 
CONCLUSION 
 The Committee requests that, in accordance with its recommendations, the Agency 
reaffirm, in part and amend or establish, in part its Uniform Tax Exemption Policy, as follows: 

1) reaffirm its Agricultural Industry Program; Disaster Impacted Businesses Program; 
Encouraging the Return of Tax Exempt Property to Taxable Status Program; and Arts 
Industry Program; 

2) amend its General Abatement Program, to (i) use the assessed value established by the 
assessing jurisdiction as the TVSP when computing PILOT payments for years eleven (11) 
through twenty (20) of the Program; and (ii) balance job creation with the need for housing 
by allowing benefits for distribution center projects under this Program only if those 
projects construct or renovate market rate workforce housing at a minimum rate of one (1) 
unit per twelve thousand five hundred (12,500) square feet of distribution center space and 
a maximum rate of one (1) unit per five thousand (5,000) square feet of distribution center 
space, with such market rate workforce housing located within Sullivan County and within 
twenty-five (25) miles of the distribution center project; 

3) amend its Tourism Industry Program, to offer an enhanced level of real estate tax 
abatements, specifically 100% abatement of new real estate taxes resulting from 
improvements for years one (1) through eight (8), decreasing twelve and one-half (12 ½%) 
percent per year for years nine (9) through sixteen, for projects that (a) create and maintain 
one FTE for every two (2) rooms constructed, and (b) construct or renovate market rate 
workforce housing at a minimum rate of one (1) unit for every four (4) rooms and a 
maximum rate of one (1) unit for every one (1) room renovated or constructed as part of 



the Tourism Industry project, with such market rate workforce housing units located within 
Sullivan County and within twenty-five (25) miles of the Tourism Industry project;  

4) amend its Targeted Manufacturing Program as needed to include all SIC codes that apply 
to businesses manufacturing green technologies; 

5) amend its Retail Sales Program to reflect the requirements of Section 862 of the GML; 
6) remove its Green Technology Manufacturing Program as a standalone program limited to 

the SUNY Sullivan campus, and incentivize green technology manufacturing projects 
anywhere in the County under the Targeted Manufacturing Program;  

7) remove its Destination Resort Program as a standalone program and incentivize large-scale 
tourism projects through an enhanced benefits schedule under the Tourism Industry 
Program as described above; 

8) eliminate its Tax Credit Participation Program; 
9) amend its Community Distributed Generation Program to eliminate the limitation on 

Agency involvement in areas where a taxing jurisdiction has opted out under RPTL §487; 
and  

10) create the Sullivan County International Airport Program through which an applicant 
seeking to develop an aircraft hangar or other aviation-related facility on land owned by 
the County of Sullivan at the Sullivan County International Airport receives sales tax 
abatements on taxable purchases made in connection with the project; mortgage tax 
abatement on all loans financing the project; and a real estate tax abatement on the total 
assessed value over a thirty (30) year period, at seventy-five (75%) of the assessed value 
established by the assessing jurisdiction for years one (1) through thirty (30).  

 
The review undertaken by the Committee identified some areas where exploring solutions 

could not be accommodated in the timeframe for issuance of this report, as follows: 
1. The Committee is hopeful that enhancing benefits under the Tourism Industry Program 

if market rate workforce housing units are developed and requiring development of 
market rate workforce housing as a condition for a distribution center to obtain financial 
assistance under the General Abatement program, will lead to development of sorely 
needed market rate workforce housing in the County.  More work needs to be done to 
develop additional programs and incentives to promote housing opportunities.   

2. The Committee recognizes that lack of childcare options in the County has resulted in 
some parents not being able to enter the workforce.  Accordingly, development of 
incentives for childcare projects is necessary.   

3. The Committee believes that strategies for redevelopment of the County’s “Main 
Streets” is worthy of further exploration.  The Committee recognizes that tax 
exemptions and financial assistance standing alone will not be an effective tool to 
accomplish this complicated goal.   
 

If the County Legislature is in support of continued work by the Committee, the Committee 
is willing to continue to explore these areas of concern and if solutions or recommendations are 
developed, issue a supplemental report to the Agency. 
70319-020v5 





 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

A regular meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”) 
was convened on March 14, 2022 at 11:00 a.m. local time via videoconference as authorized by 
Chapter 417 of the Laws of 2021, which took effect on September 2, 2021 and was amended 
effective January 14, 2022 and further amended effective February 14, 2022. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Suzanne Loughlin, and, upon the roll being 
called, the following members of the Agency were: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
   
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Sean Brooks   [     ]  [      ] 
 
 The following persons were also present: 
 Jennifer M. Flad, Executive Director 
 John W. Kiefer, Chief Executive Officer 
 Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
 Walter F. Garigliano, General Counsel 
     
        
 The following resolution was duly offered by _____________, and seconded by 
_____________, to wit: 
 
 Resolution No. __- 22 
         

RESOLUTION AMENDING, IN PART AND REAFFIRMING, IN PART THE 
AGENCY’S CURRENT UNIFORM TAX EXEMPTION POLICIES (“UTEP”) 
AS HEREIN SET FORTH, ELIMINATING CERTAIN UTEPs, AND 
CREATING ONE (1) ADDITIONAL UTEP, TO WIT:  SULLIVAN COUNTY 
INTERNATIONAL AIPRPORT PROGRAM AS HEREIN SET FORTH  

 
 WHEREAS, the Agency was created by Chapter 560 of the Laws of 1970 of the State of 
New York, as amended, pursuant to Title I of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the 
State of New York (collectively, the "Act") as a body corporate and politic and as a public benefit 
corporation of the State of New York; and  
 

WHEREAS, on September 30, 2021, Robert Doherty, Chairman of the Sullivan County 
Legislature (“County Legislature”), appointed a six (6) member committee (“Committee”) to 
review the Agency’s UTEP as it now exists and assess the UTEP’s strengths and weaknesses in 



 

 

providing assistance to individuals or companies that seek to establish or expand businesses and 
create employment in the County; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Committee issued a report dated February 9, 2022 entitled Report and 
Recommendations of Committee to Review County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency’s 
Uniform Tax Exemption Policy; and 

 
WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 05-22,  the Agency authorized and directed Agency staff 

to take official action necessary for the Agency to consider a resolution to (i) reaffirm its 
Agricultural Industry Program, Disaster Impacted Business Program, Encouraging the Return of 
Tax Exempt Property to Taxable Status Program and Arts Industry Program; and (ii) amend in part 
its General Abatement Program, Tourism Industry Program, Targeted Manufacturing Program, 
Retail Sales Program and Community Distributed Generation Program; and (iii) eliminate its 
Green Technology Manufacturing Program, Destination Resort Program and Tax Credit 
Participation Program; and (iv) create the Sullivan County International Airport Program as 
hereinabove set forth; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 17, 2022, Jennifer Flad, the Agency’s Executive Director mailed 

a copy of a Memorandum Relating to Amendments to the Agency’s UTEP (“Memorandum”) 
together with a copy of the Report of the Committee via certified mail, return receipt requested, to 
the following individuals: 
 

VIA CERTIFIED MAIL w/ RETURN RECEIPT:  
Joshua Potosek 
Sullivan County Manager 
100 North Street 
Monticello, NY 12701 
 

  
Daniel Sturm 
Town of Bethel Supervisor 
3454 Route 55, PO Box 300 
White Lake, NY 12786 
 

  
Tom Bose 
Town of Callicoon Supervisor 
19 Legion Street, PO Box 687 
Jeffersonville, NY 12748 
 
  

Gary Maas 
Town of Cochecton Supervisor 
74 Smales Road 
Lake Huntington, NY 12752 
 

  
Scott  DuBois 
Town of Delaware Supervisor 
104 Main Street, PO Box 129 
Hortonville, NY 12745 
 

  
Jeffery Haas 
Town of Highland Supervisor 
4 Proctor Road, PO Box 177 
Eldred, NY 12732 
 

 
Frank DeMayo 
Town of Liberty Supervisor 
120 North Main Street 
Liberty, NY 12754 
 

  
Jenny Mellan 
Town of Lumberland Supervisor 
1054 Proctor Road 
Glen Spey, NY 12737 
 

  
Michael Robbins 
Town of Mamakating Supervisor 
2948 Route 209 
Wurtsboro, NY 12790 
 

 
Robert Eggleton 
Town of Rockland Supervisor 
95 Main Street, PO Box 964 
Livingston Manor, NY 12758 
 

  
William  Rieber Jr. 
Town of Thompson Supervisor 
4052 Route 42 
Monticello, NY 12701 
 

  
Chris Mathews 
Town of Neversink Supervisor 
PO Box 307, 273 Main Street 
Grahamsville, NY 12740 
 



 

 

 
Ben Johnson 
Town of Tusten Supervisor 
210 Bridge Street 
Narrowsburg, NY 12764 
 

  
Brian Brustman 
Town of Fremont Supervisor 
12 County Road 95, PO Box 69 
Fremont Center, NY 12736 
 

  
Katherine Rappaport 
Town of Fallsburg Supervisor 
19 Railroad Plaza, PO Box 2019 
South Fallsburg, NY 12779 
 

 
Daniel Hogue, Jr 
Town of Forestburgh Supervisor 
332 King Road 
Forestburgh, NY 12777 
 

  
Joan Collins 
Village of Woodridge Mayor 
2 Dairyland Road, PO Box 655 
Woodridge, NY 12789 
 

  
Russell Wood Jr. 
Village of Bloomingburg Mayor 
PO Box 341, 13 North Road 
Bloomingburg, NY 12721 
 

 
William Chellis 
Village of Jeffersonville Mayor 
17 Center Street 
Jeffersonville, NY 12748 
 

  
Joan Stoddard 
Village of Liberty Mayor 
167 N Main Street 
Liberty, NY 12754 
 

  
George Nikolados 
Village of Monticello Mayor 
2 Pleasant Street 
Monticello, NY 12701 
 

 
Frank Sisco 
Village of Wurtsboro Mayor 
7 Pennsylvania Ave 
Wurtsboro, NY 12790 
 

  
Lisa Wiles 
Superintendent, Ellenville CSD 
28 Maple Avenue 
Ellenville, NY 12428 
 

  
Michael Rydell, Superintendent 
Port Jervis City Schools 
9 Thompson Street 
Port Jervis, NY 12771 
 
  

Donna Geidel, Interim Superintendent 
Pine Bush Central School District 
156 State Route 302 
Pine Bush, NY 12566 
 

  
John Evans, Superintendent 
Livingston Manor CSD 
PO Box 947 
Livingston Manor, NY 12758 
 

  
John Evans, Superintendent 
Roscoe Central School District 
6 Academy Street 
Roscoe, NY 12776 
 

 
Dr. John Morgano, Superintendent 
Eldred Central School District 
600 Rt. 55, PO Box 249 
Eldred, NY 12732 
 

  
Dr. William Silver, Acting Supt. 
Tri-Valley Central School District 
34 Moore Hill Road 
Grahamsville, NY 12740 
 

  
Dr. Patrick Sullivan, Superintendent 
Liberty Central School District 
115 Buckley Street 
Liberty, NY 12754 
 

 
Dr. Ivan Katz, Superintendent 
Fallsburg Central School District 
115 Brickman Rd, PO Box 124 
Fallsburg, NY 12733 
 

  
Stephen Walker, Superintendent 
Sullivan West Central School District 
33 Schoolhouse Road 
Jeffersonville, NY 12748 
 

  
Dr. Matthew Evans, Superintendent 
Monticello Central School District 
60 Jefferson Street 
Monticello, NY 12701 
 

 
Brian C. Monahan, Superintendent 
Minisink Valley Central School District 
PO Box 217, 2320 Route 6 
Slate Hill, NY 10973 

    
 

; and 
 
WHEREAS, on or about February 17, 2022, the Executive Director hand delivered a copy 

of the Memorandum together with a copy of the Report of the Committee to the following 
individuals: 



 

 

VIA HAND DELIVERY: 
Robert Doherty, Chairman 
Sullivan County Legislature 
100 North Street 
Monticello, NY 12701 
 

  
Nadia Rajsz 
Sullivan County Legislator (District 2) 
100 North Street 
Monticello, NY 12701 
 

  
Michael Brooks 
Sullivan County Legislator (District 3) 
100 North Street 
Monticello, NY 12701 
 

 
Nicholas Salomone Jr. 
Sullivan County Legislator (District 4) 
100 North Street 
Monticello, NY 12701 
 

  
George Conklin 
Sullivan County Legislator (District 5) 
100 North Street 
Monticello, NY 12701 
 

  
Luis Alvarez 
Sullivan County Legislator (District 6) 
100 North Street 
Monticello, NY 12701 
 

 
Joseph Perrello 
Sullivan County Legislator (District 7) 
100 North Street 
Monticello, NY 12701 
 

  
Ira Steingart 
Sullivan County Legislator (District 8) 
100 North Street 
Monticello, NY 12701 
 
 

  
Alan Sorensen 
Sullivan County Legislator (District 9) 
100 North Street 
Monticello, NY 12701 
 

 
AnnMarie Martin, Clerk 
Sullivan County Legislature 
100 North Street 
Monticello, NY 12701 
 

  
 

  
 

; and 
WHEREAS, the Agency received a letter from the Town of Forestburgh dated January 10, 

2022 requesting the Agency suspend certain tax abatement programs in the Town (“Forestburgh 
Request Letter”. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Agency hereby reaffirms without modification the following UTEPs: 

 
Agricultural Industry Program 

Disaster Impacted Businesses Program 
Encouraging the Return of Tax Exempt Property to Taxable Status Program 

Arts Industry Program 
 

Section 2. The Agency hereby amends in part its General Abatement Program so that the total 
value subject to payment in lieu of taxes (“TVSP”) is fixed by the Agency for only 
the first ten (10) years of the program.  After the ten (10) year “freeze period”, the 
assessed value established by the assessing jurisdiction will be utilized in 
computing payments in lieu of taxes (“PILOT Payments”) for the remaining ten 
(10) years of the program.   

 
Section 3. The General Abatement Program is further amended to require distribution center 

projects to provide, through construction or renovation, market rate workforce 
housing at a minimum rate of one (1) housing unit per twelve thousand five hundred 



 

 

(12,500) square feet of distribution center space and a maximum of one (1) housing 
unit per five thousand (5,000) square feet of distribution center space, in order to 
be eligible for benefits under the General Abatement Program.  Market rate 
workforce housing units must be renovated or constructed within Sullivan County, 
and within twenty-five (25) miles of the distribution center project.  Qualifying 
housing shall receive an abatement of fifty (50%) percent of real estate taxes on the 
new improvements for a period of fifteen (15) years.  The newly developed housing 
units shall have occupancy controlled by deed restrictions approved by the Agency. 

 
Section 4. The Agency hereby amends in part its Tourism Industry Program to offer two levels 

of real property tax abatements.  The first level is identical to the current abatement 
schedule: real estate taxes will be abated on the increased value resulting from 
improvements at one hundred (100%) percent for years one (1) through five (5) 
with the abatement decreasing ten (10%) percent per year for years six (6) through 
fifteen (15).  The second level will be as follows:  real estate taxes will be abated 
on the increased value resulting from improvements at one hundred (100%) percent 
for years one (1) through eight (8), with the abatement decreasing twelve and a half 
(12.5%) percent per year for years nine (9) through sixteen (16). To be eligible for 
the enhanced sixteen (16) year abatement schedule, a project must meet two 
criteria: 1) the project must create one full-time equivalent employment position 
for every two (2) rooms constructed as part of the Tourism Industry project, and 2) 
the project must provide, through construction or renovation, market rate workforce 
housing at a minimum of one (1) unit for every four (4) rooms and a maximum of 
one (1) unit for every one (1) room renovated or constructed as part of the Tourism 
Industry project.   Market rate workforce housing units must be renovated or 
constructed within Sullivan County, and within twenty-five (25) miles of the 
Tourism Industry project.  Qualifying housing shall receive an abatement of fifty 
(50%) percent of real estate taxes on the new improvements for a period of fifteen 
(15) years.  The newly developed housing units shall have occupancy controlled by 
deed restrictions approved by the Agency. 

 
Section 5. The Agency hereby amends in part its Targeted Manufacturing Program to include 

green technology manufacturing businesses in the list of SIC codes that are eligible 
for Agency benefits. 

 
Section 6. The Agency hereby amends in part its Retail Sales Program to exactly mirror the 

current requirements of Section 862 of the General Municipal Law. 
 
Section 7. The Agency hereby amends in part its Community Distributed Generation Program 

to eliminate the limitation that the Agency only provide financial assistance in areas 
where no taxing jurisdiction has opted out of RPTL Section 487. 

 
Section 8. The Agency hereby amends in part its Green Technology Manufacturing Program 

to eliminate the Green Technology Manufacturing Program as a standalone 
program and instead integrate green technology manufacturing into the Agency’s 
Targeted Manufacturing Program.    



 

 

 
Section 9. The Agency hereby amends in part its Destination Resort Program to eliminate the 

Destination Resort Program as a standalone program and instead integrate it into 
the Tourism Industry Program. 

 
Section 10. The Agency hereby eliminates the Tax Credit Participation Program. 
 
 
Section 11. The Agency hereby creates the Sullivan County International Airport Program 

(“SCIA Program”), which shall be available to developers proposing the 
construction of aircraft hangars or other aviation-related facilities. 

 
The SCIA Program shall include following program benefits: 
 Sales. Sales tax abatement on all taxable purchases made in connection with 
acquisition, construction, installation and equipping of the project. 
 Mortgage.  Mortgage tax abatement on all loans financing projects under 
this program. 
 Real Estate. A thirty (30) year abatement schedule whereby seventy-five 
(75%) percent of the assessed value resulting from improvements as established by 
the assessing jurisdiction is abated for thirty (30) years. 
Location Restriction. 
 Only projects located on the approximately six hundred (600) acres owned 
by the County of Sullivan and operated as the Sullivan County International Airport 
will be eligible for benefits under this program. 
Employment Goals. 

No employment goals are proposed. 
 

Section 12. The Agency hereby amends its UTEPs to document the lifting of the location 
restriction imposed on September 14, 2004, which eliminated benefits under the 
Tourism Industry Program, General Abatement Program, and Retail Sales Program 
for applicants proposing tourism destination facilities within the Town of 
Thompson.  

 
Section 13. Agency staff is hereby directed to arrange a meeting with Forestburgh Town 

officials to gather additional information in order to properly and thoughtfully 
respond to the Forestburgh Request Letter. 

Section 14. This Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
 
 



 

 

 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 
which resulted as follows: 
 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain  
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain  
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Sean Brooks   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 The resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 
  



 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK : 
              :SS 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN    : 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
1. I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the County of Sullivan Industrial 

Development Agency (“Agency”) with the original thereof on file in the office of the 
Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of the 
proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

 
2. Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened via video conference 

call on March 14, 2022 at 11:00 a.m. at which the following members were present: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
   
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Sean Brooks   [     ]  [      ] 
 
3. The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call 

which resulted as follows: 
 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain  
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain  
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Sean Brooks   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 
 and therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
  
70320-043v5 

 
  



 

 

 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting, 
(ii) pursuant to Sections 103(a) and (c) and 104 of the Public Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), 
said meeting was open to the general public via videoconferencing and public notice of the time 
and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Sections 103(a) and (c) and 104, 
(iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held via videoconference as authorized by Chapter 417 of 
the Laws of 2021, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout. 
           
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal on the 14th day of March, 
2022. 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Carol Roig, Secretary 
  
 
 
      
 
 



 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

A regular meeting of the County of Sullivan Industrial Development Agency (“Agency”) 
was convened on March 14, 2022 at 11:00 a.m. local time via videoconference as authorized by 
Chapter 417 of the Laws of 2021, which took effect on September 2, 2021 and was amended 
effective January 14, 2022 and further amended effective February 14, 2022. 

 
 The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Suzanne Loughlin, and, upon the roll being 
called, the following members of the Agency were: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
   
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Sean Brooks   [     ]  [      ] 
 
 The following persons were also present: 
 Jennifer M. Flad, Executive Director 
 John W. Kiefer, Chief Executive Officer 
 Julio Garaicoechea, Project Manager 
 Walter F. Garigliano, General Counsel 
     
        
 The following resolution was duly offered by _____________, and seconded by 
_____________, to wit: 
 
 Resolution No. __- 22 
         

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT OF THE 
ADELAAR DEVELOPER, LLC (‘COMPANY”) PAYMENT IN 
LIEU OF TAXATION AGREEMENT TO AUTHORIZE 
ACCEPTANCE OF A GUARANTY FROM EPR PROPERTIES 
AS FINANCIAL SECURITY FOR THE 2023 PILOT PAYMENT  

 
 WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York ("State"), as amended, and Chapter 560 of the Laws of 1970 of the State, as amended and 
codified as Section 960 of the General Municipal Law (collectively, the “Act”), the Agency was 
created with the authority and power to own, lease and sell property as authorized by the Act; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company presented an application (“Application”) to the Agency, a copy 

of which is on file with the Agency, requesting the Agency’s assistance with respect to a certain 
project consisting of the: (i) the acquisition by the Agency a leasehold interest or other interest in 



 

 

certain property located east of Chalet Road in the Town of Thompson (“Town”), County of 
Sullivan, State of New York, being more particularly identified as tax map number 15-1-14.4 and 
containing in the aggregate approximately 131 acres (“Land”); (ii) the construction and equipping 
on the Land of an approximately 425,000 square-foot indoor water park resort hotel including, but 
not limited, to (a) an approximately seven-story 324 unit hotel/resort, (b) an approximately 20,000 
square-foot conference center with a 6,500 square foot ballroom, (c) an approximately 85,000 
square-foot indoor water park, (d) a split-level lobby core on an approximately 47,000 square-foot 
foot print (94,000 square feet total), (e) a porte-cochere, (f) outdoor pools with concession areas 
and bars, (g) an outdoor pavilion stage adjacent to the conference center to be used for concerts 
and other events, and (h) related amenities (collectively, the “Improvements”), (iii) the acquisition 
in and around the Land and the Improvements of certain items of equipment and other tangible 
personal property (“Equipment” and collectively with the Land and the Improvements, the 
“Facility” or “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, by resolutions, dated March 19, 2013 and March 13, 2017 (collectively, 
“Resolution”), the Agency authorized the Company to act as its agent for the purposes of 
constructing and equipping the Project subject to, among other conditions, the Company entering 
into a Payment in Lieu of Taxation Agreement (“PILOT Agreement”) (Destination Resort 
Program UTEP); and 

WHEREAS, the Company, on behalf of the Agency and as the Agency's agent, constructed, 
installed and equipped the Project materially in accordance with the plans and specifications 
presented to the Agency; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency and the Company executed a PILOT Agreement making 
provision for payments in lieu of taxes by the Company for the benefit of the County, Town and 
the Monticello Central School District (“School”) (collectively, the County, the Town and the 
School are referred to as the “Taxing Jurisdictions”); and  

WHEREAS, the Project is operated by Catskill Resorts TRS, LLC (“CRTRS”), an affiliate 
of the Company; and  

WHEREAS, CRTRS and the Company are each indirect subsidiaries of and owned by EPR 
Properties, a Maryland real estate investment trust (“EPR”), a New York Stock Exchange traded 
public company; and  

WHEREAS, Article IX, Section 9, of the PILOT Agreement provides in applicable part as 
follows: 

“The Company shall procure, for the benefit of the Agency, financial 
security in form and substance acceptable to the Agency (“Financial Security”) to 
secure the performance by the Company of its financial obligations under this 
PILOT Agreement for all PILOT Payment dates from Year 3 (as provided in ¶1.3) 
through Year 18.  The Company shall deliver to the Agency Financial Security in 
an amount equal to 110% of the Agency’s estimate of the Year 1 PILOT Payment 
on or before February 1, 2021 with a term to expire not earlier than the following 



 

 

February 28.  On each February 1st thereafter that this PILOT Agreement is in 
effect, the Company shall deliver to the Agency a renewal or replacement of the 
then posted Financial Security, in form and substance acceptable to the Agency in 
an amount of not less than 110% of the PILOT Payment which is due as of such 
date.  The replacement or renewal Financial Security shall not expire prior to 
February 28th of the following year.  In the event that cash security is posted as the 
Financial Security hereunder, the Agency shall release the Financial Security to the 
Company within thirty (30) days after the expiration of this Agreement.” 

WHEREAS, EPR has requested that the Agency accept a guaranty of EPR as security for 
the PILOT Payment due in January 2023. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  

Section 1. The Agency shall accept the guaranty of EPR, as security for the 2023 PILOT 
Payment, on conditions that all costs related to the Amendment of the PILOT 
Agreement to implement the intent of this resolution shall be paid by the Company. 

Section 2. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and 
directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things 
required and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and 
documents, to pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further 
acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or 
agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolutions 
and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and 
provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 
Section 3.  These Resolutions shall take effect immediately 
 
 The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 
which resulted as follows: 
 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain  
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain  
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Sean Brooks   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
  
 The resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 
  



 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK : 
              :SS 
COUNTY OF SULLIVAN    : 
 
 I, the undersigned Secretary of the Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 
 
1. I have compared the foregoing copy of a resolution of the County of Sullivan Industrial 

Development Agency (“Agency”) with the original thereof on file in the office of the 
Agency, and that the same is a true and correct copy of such resolution and of the 
proceedings of the Agency in connection with such matter. 

 
2. Such resolution was passed at a meeting of the Agency duly convened via video conference 

call on March 14, 2022 at 11:00 a.m. at which the following members were present: 
 
     PRESENT  ABSENT 
   
 Suzanne Loughlin  [     ]  [     ] 
 Edward T. Sykes  [     ]  [     ] 
 Carol Roig   [     ]  [     ] 
 Howard Siegel   [     ]  [     ] 
 Scott Smith   [     ]  [     ] 
 Paul Guenther                         [     ]  [     ] 
 Sean Brooks   [     ]  [      ] 
 
3. The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call 

which resulted as follows: 
 
 Suzanne Loughlin  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Edward T. Sykes  [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain  
 Carol Roig   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Howard Siegel   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain  
 Scott Smith   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Paul Guenther   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 Sean Brooks   [    ] Yes         [    ] No        [    ] Absent        [    ] Abstain 
 
 
 and therefore, the resolution was declared duly adopted. 
  
70320-040v2 

 
  



 

 

 
 I FURTHER CERTIFY that (i) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting, 
(ii) pursuant to Sections 103(a) and (c) and 104 of the Public Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), 
said meeting was open to the general public via videoconferencing and public notice of the time 
and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Sections 103(a) and (c) and 104, 
(iii) the meeting in all respects was duly held via videoconference as authorized by Chapter 417 of 
the Laws of 2021, and (iv) there was a quorum present throughout. 
           
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal on the 14th day of March, 
2022. 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Carol Roig, Secretary 
  
 
 
      
 
 


	1_IDA Notice & Agenda 03142022
	2_2-14-2022  & 2-24-22 Meeting Minutes DRAFTv2
	3_03142022 REVISED Schedule of Payments
	4_February 2022 Staff Report for Board
	5_70320-041v3 ABRLF Resolution
	6_Review Committee Final Report
	7_Town of Forestburgh Letter 01102022
	8_70320-043v5 UTEP Resolution
	9_70320-040v2 Adelaar Resolution

